
1



0. Deliberate and Set Date to Vote on Proposed Tax Rate for the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024

P. Hear, Discuss, Review and Possibly Take Action on adopting Ordinance No. 2023-
06 Adopting New Policies and Procedures for City of Daingerfield Boards and
Commissions.

Q. Deliberate, Discuss and Approve Ordinance No. 2023-9 Repealing Ordinance No
2010-03 Juvenil Curfew.

R. Hear, Discuss, Review and Possibly Take Action on Request to close Webb St,
Frazier St and Scurry Street on October 28, 2023 to Allow the City to sponsor a
Trunk or Treat event organized by James White and Josh Sanders.

7. Monthly Departmental Reports: Informational reports only; no action to be taken:
A. Animal Shelter, Code Enforcement, Electrical, EMS, Fire, Library, Municipal

court, Police, Public Works
B. Financial
C. City Manager

8. Monthly Boards and Commissions Minuets: Informational reports only; no action to be
taken:

A. Economic Development Corporation and Northeast Texas Municipal Water
District

9. Adjournment.

Note: The City of Daingerfield reserves the right to conduct closed meet

b

any agenda item in accordance with 
§551.071-- §551.076 of the Government Code.

Q.....---Wade Kerley, ayor 

I, Michelle Jones, certify that the above notice of meeting was posted in a public place before 
4:30 p.m. on Friday, August 4, 2023. 

,J,! 
SEAL 

2



CITY SECRETARY’S AGENDA NOTES 
August 7, 2023 

 
2. Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge. 

 
3. Public Comments.: At this time, anyone will be allowed to speak on any matter other than 

personnel matters and matters under litigation, for length of time not to exceed three minutes.  
No Council discussion or action may take place on a matter until such matter has been placed 
on an agenda and posted in accordance with the law. 

 
 If, at a meeting of a governmental body, a member of the public or of the governmental body inquiries 

about a subject for which notice has not been given as required by this subchapter, the notice provisions 

of this subchapter do not apply to:  

(1) a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry; or 

(2) a recitation of existing policy in response to the inquiry. 

 

4. Consent Agenda 
All consent items are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion and vote. 

A. Deliberate and Act to Approve Minutes of July 10, 2023:  Drafts of the minutes are 
on pages 6 through 9 of your packets. 
 

5. Presentation: 
Informational report only, no action to be taken. 

A. Presentation from Marty Walker on Potential Land Donation to Develop a new 
Baseball Sports Complex: Letter and Map provided by Marty Walker of property on pages 
11 and 12. This property is owned by the Daingerfield Lone Star ISD, currently DLSISD has 
not granted anyone authority to represent them on this topic.  

 

6. Business 
           Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding 

A. Deliberate and Take from the Table Agenda Item to Hear, Discuss, Review and 
Possibly Take Action on adopting Water Rate Minimum Charge based on Meter 
Size:  

B. Hear, Discuss, Review and Possibly Take Action on adopting Water Rate 
Minimum Charge based on Meter Size: After last meetings discussion, City Manager 
Keith Whitfield re-worked the proposed numbers to reflect the water rate increase and 
lowered the amounts for the 4-, 6- and 10-inch meter size.  The rates are listed in 
Ordinance No 2023-7a for Water Rates and 2023-8a Sewer rates on pages 13 and 14, 
most residents will not be affected by this change as they usually have a 3/4'” or 5/8” 
meter. Various graphs that reflect meter size for customers, a rate comparison and total 
water, sewer and trash bills are on pages 15 through 20.  

C. Deliberate and Take from the Table Agenda Item to Hear, Discuss, Review and 
Possibly Take Action on the City taking ownership of Irvin Ballpark located at 
1105 Bert St, currently owned by Daingerfield Dixie Youth Baseball Association:  

D. Hear, Discuss, Review and Possibly Take Action on the City taking ownership of 
Irvin Ballpark located at 1105 Bert St, currently owned by Daingerfield Dixie Youth 
Baseball Association: On page 21 are the minutes from the Daingerfield Dixie Youth 
Baseball Association meeting where they voted to allow the City of Daingerfield to take 
ownership of the Irvin Park property. On page 22 is a statement of maintenance, 
upkeep and expenses for Irvin Park from the league. Property Detail from Morris County 
Appraisal District is on page 23 and 24 

3



E. Deliberate and Take from the Table Agenda Item to Deliberate and Act to Approve 
a 5.7 Percent Consumer Price Index Increase in Rates Charged by Republic 
Services, Inc. for Garbage Collection and Disposal: 

F. Deliberate and Act to Approve a 5.7 Percent Consumer Price Index Increase in 
Rates Charged by Republic Services, Inc. for Garbage Collection and Disposal: A 
letter from Republic Services is on pages 25 and 26. Republic Services’ new rate sheet 
is on page 27. The 5.7 precent increase includes Residential, Commercial Hand Collect, 
Dumpsters and Roll Off Service. At the previous meeting the question was raised if the 
City is legally allowed to make revenue on garbage rates. The City Attorney stated that 
yes the City is allowed to make a reasonable rate of return on the garbage rates. On 
pages 28 through 30 is a copy of the Extension agreement with information on 
Modification of Rates that the City signed and agreed to in 2020. 

G. Deliberate and Take from the Table Agenda Item to Deliberate and Act on 
Ordinance No. 2023- to Amend Chapter 14, Section 14.17 Regarding Rates 
Charged by the City for Refuse Collection: 

H. Deliberate and Act on Ordinance No. 2023-02 to Amend Chapter 14, Section 14.17 
Regarding Rates Charged by the City for Refuse Collection: The current City 
Ordinance with current garbage rates is on page 31 and 32. The proposed City 
Ordinance with the increased rates effective on October 1, 2023, is on page 33 and 34. 

I. Hear, Discuss, Review and Possibly Take Action on Adopting a Downtown 
Beautification Donation Project presented by C & A Creations: The owners of C & 
A Creations, current landscapers for the City, came to the City Manager with a 
Downtown Beautification Donation project and will present details at this time. 
Presentation is on pages 35 through 43.  

J. Deliberate, Discuss and Approve Increase of Water Rates: The Ordinance is on 
page 44. Current rates are on page 45. Northeast Texas Water District is raising the 
water rate that the City pays by $1.11 per 1,000 gallons, the proposed water rate is 
$24.22 for the first 2,000 gallons. This is 10.10% to residents. This will not create any 
new revenue for the City. The City last raised Water rates on August 24, 2020.  

K. Deliberate, Discuss and Approve Increase of Sewer Rates: The Ordinances is on 
page 46. Current Rates are on page 47. The proposed sewer rate is $27.53 for 0-4,000 
gallons. Over 4, 000 gallons is $4.40 per 1,000 gallons. There will still be a Sewer Cap 
of 10,000 gallons during the summer months. Sewer rates last increased on August 
24,2020. 

L. Presentation and Discussion of the Preliminary Budget for FY 2023-2024: During 
this discussion, the Council must agree on a Tax Rate to be used in the Budget. The 
Council will still Vote to Adopt the Tax Rate and the Budget at the Meeting in 
September. We must notify the Morris County Appraisal District by noon on August 12th 
of the 2023 Tax Rate we are using in the Budget so that required postcards can be 
mailed on this date to all owners concerning The Truth in Taxation website. The Tax 
Rate used in the Proposed Budget is the same rate as last year .491974. The Voter 
Approval Rate is .551556 and would have to be voted on in an election. The No-New 
Revenue Rate is .395025. The Proposed Budget Begins on page 48.The Analysis of 
Tax Rate is on page 49. 

M. Deliberate and Set Date for Public Hearing on the Proposed Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024: State law requires that a public hearing be held with advance notice 
published in the City’s newspaper of record before the budget can be adopted. We need 
to schedule the Public Hearing on the Proposed Budget for September 11, 2023. 

N. Deliberate and Set Date for Public Hearing on Proposed Tax Rate for the Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024: A public hearing for the Proposed Tax Rate is only required if new 
revenue will be made. If council decides to adopt the No-New Revenue Rate this is not 
needed. State law requires that a public hearing be held with advance notice published 

4



in the City’s newspaper of record before the Tax Rate can be adopted. We need to 
schedule the Public Hearing on the Proposed Budget for September 11,2023.  

O. Deliberate and Set Date to Vote on Proposed Tax Rate for the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024: This year we must adopt the Tax Rate by September 18, 2023. Voting on the
proposed tax rate is traditionally done at the same meeting as the adoption of the
budget on September 18, 2023.

P. Hear, Discuss, Review and Possibly Take Action on adopting Ordinance No. 2023-
06 Adopting New Policies and Procedures for City of Daingerfield Boards and
Commissions: The ordinance is on pages 71 through 79 . This ordinance will establish
consistent policies and procedures for all advisory and other boards and commissions
of the City. Currently the City has ordinances adopted for the Planning and Zoning
Commission and Board of Adjustments. This ordinance will be in addition to the current
ones in place and will provide consistent guidance to both City Staff and board
members.

Q. Deliberate, Discuss and Approve Ordinance No. 2023-9 Repealing Ordinance No
2010-03 Juvenil Curfew: The Ordinance is on page 80. House Bill 1819 “Juvenile
Curfew bans the imposition of a curfew of persons younger than 18 years of age, except
for purposes of emergency management was signed into law June 9, 2023. Therefore,
there is a need to repeal Ordinance 2010-03 Juvenile Curfew.

R. Hear, Discuss, Review and Possibly Take Action on Request to close Webb St,
Frazier St and Scurry Street on October 28, 2023 to Allow the City to sponsor a
Trunk or Treat event organized by James White and Josh Sanders: Mr. James
White local business owner contacted the City wanting to organize  a Trunk or Treat
and was put in contact with Chamber of Commerce President Josh Sanders,
unfortunately the Chamber voted against sponsoring the Trunk or Treat stating it is too
close to Daingerfield Days and they do not have the time. James White and Josh
Sanders are interested in organizing the event on their own with City Sponsorship.
Multiple City Departments are interested in participating in this event and would like the
Council to approve City support and allow the streets to be closed for the event.

7. Monthly Departmental Reports: Informational reports only; no action to be taken:
A. Animal Shelter, Code Enforcement, Electrical, EMS, Fire, Library, Municipal

court, Police, Public Works: Monthly Reports are on pages 81 through 92.
B. Financial: Located on pages 93  through 99
C. City Manager:  Keith’s notes are on page 10.

8. Monthly Boards and Commissions Minuets: Informational reports only; no action to be
taken:

A. Economic Development Corporation, Northeast Texas Municipal Water District:
Minuets are on pages 100 through 102.

9. Adjournment

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-05 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAINGERFIELD, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 14, SECTION 14-19 
REGARDING RATES CHARGED BY THE CITY FOR WATER 
SERVICES, AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAINGERFIELD, 
TEXAS: 

The water rates prescribed by Chapter 14, Section 14-19 of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Daingerfield, Texas, are amended and shall be 
effective with the billing month of October 2020 and shall thereafter read as 
follows: 

(1) Minimum for the first two thousand (2,000) gallons $22.00 
(2) Per 1,000 gallons for the next 8,000 gallons $  5.25 
(3) Per 1,000 gallons for the next 30,000 gallons $  5.50 
(4) Per 1,000 gallons for the next 40,000 gallons $  6.00 
(5) Per 1,000 gallons for all over 80,000 gallons $  6.50 

(Ord. of 01-29-63; § 1; Ord. No. 76-11, 10-25-76; Ord. No. 80-10, 06-30-80; 
Ord. No. 81-3, 05-04-81; Ord. No. 83-4, 09-27-83; Ord. No. 84-9, 07-23-84; Ord. 
No. 1996-5, 07-08-96; Ord. No. 1996-8, 09-09-96; Ord. No. 1999-6, 10-11-99; 
Ord. No. 2001-02, 10-08-01; Ord. No. 2002-04, 09-16-02; Ord. No. 2008-06, 06-
9-08; Ord. No. 2009-04, 09-14-09, Ord. No. 2012-04, 09-17-12, Ord. No. 2020-
05, 08-10-20.)

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 24th day of August, 2020. 

_______________________________ 
   Lou Irvin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 
Heide Edmonson 
City Secretary 

45



46



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-06 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAINGERFIELD, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 14, SECTION 14-20 
REGARDING RATES CHARGED BY THE CITY FOR SEWER SERVICES, 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAINGERFIELD, 
TEXAS: 

The sewer rates prescribed by Chapter 14, Section 14-20 of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Daingerfield, Texas, are amended effective with the billing 
month of October, 2020 and shall thereafter read as follows: 

(1) Minimum charge for up to 4,000 gallons of water used  $25.00 
(2) Per 1,000 gallons for all over 4,000 gallons of water used  $  4.00
(3) For bills rendered to residential customers during the calendar months of
June, July, August and September, the maximum sewer charge shall not exceed
the amount charged for 10,000 gallons of water used.”

(Ord. of 01-29-63, § 2; Ord. of 11-25-68, § 1; Ord. No. 76-12, 10-25-76; Ord. No. 
80-11, 06-20-80; Ord. No. 81-3, 05-04-81; Ord. No. 82-7, 09-23-82; Ord. No. 82-8, 11-
22-82; Ord. No. 86-2, 07-14-86; Ord. No. 87-5, 06-22-87; Ord. No. 92-2, 09-14-92; Ord.
No. 95-2, 09-25-92; Ord. No. 96-5, 07-08-96; Ord. No. 1996-8, 09-09-96; Ord. No.
1999-6, 10-11-99; Ord. No. 2001-02, 10-08-01; Ord. No. 2002-04, 09-16-02; Ord. No.
2008-06, 06-9-08; Ord. No. 2012-04, 09-17-12, Ord. No 2020-06, 08-10-20.)

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 24th day of August, 2020. 

_______________________________ 
Lou Irvin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 

Heide Edmonson 
City Secretary 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102


	Agenda August 7, 2023.pdf
	City Council Packet August 7, 2023.pdf
	Agenda Notes -August 7, 2023.pdf
	Binder3.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2020-05-Amending Water Rates - 081020.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2020-06 Amending Sewer Rates-8-10-20docx.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	Contract_20230724_0001.pdf
	City Council Packet August 7, 2023.pdf






